
1 
MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING 2 

May 9, 2025 3 
4 

Wright Institute 5 
2729 Durant Avenue, Room 109/110 6 

Berkeley, CA 94704 7 
8 

Board Members Present 9 
Lea Tate, PsyD, President 10 
Sheryll Casuga, PsyD, CMPC 11 
Marisela Cervantes, EdD, MPA 12 
Seyron Foo 13 
Mary Harb Sheets, PhD 14 
Julie Nystrom 15 
Stephen Phillips, JD, PsyD 16 
Ana Rescate 17 

18 
Board Members Absent 19 
Shacunda Rodgers, PhD, Vice President 20 

21 
Board Staff   22 
Jonathan Burke, Executive Officer 23 
Stephanie Cheung, Licensing Manager 24 
Jacklyn Mancilla, Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Analyst 25 
Troy Polk, Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Coordinator 26 
Shelley Ganaway, Legal Counsel 27 

28 
Friday, May 9, 2025 

29 
Agenda Item #1: Call to Order/Roll Call/Establishment of a Quorum 30 

31 
Dr. Tate called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. A quorum was present and due notice 32 
had been sent to all interested parties.   33 

34 
Agenda Item #2: President’s Welcome 35 

36 
a) Mindfulness Exercise 37 

38 
This item was not taken up. 39 

40 
Agenda Item #3: Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda 41 

42 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 43 

44 



No public comment was offered. 45 
46 

Agenda Item #4: Discussion and Possible Approval of the Board Meeting 47 
Minutes: February 27-28, 2025 48 

49 
It was (M)Foo(S)Phillips(C) to approve the February 27-28, 2025, Board Meeting 50 
minutes with any technical, non-substantive amendments.   51 

52 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 53 

54 
No public comment was offered. 55 

56 
Votes 57 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Nystrom, Phillips, Rescate, Tate) 0 noes 58 

59 
Agenda Item #5: Discussion and Possible Approval of the Board Meeting 60 
Minutes: April 17, 2025 61 

62 
It was (M)Phillips(S)Foo(C) to approve the April 17, 2025, Board Meeting minutes with 63 
any editorial changes made prior to the vote. 64 

65 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 66 

67 
No public comment was offered. 68 

69 
Votes 70 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Nystrom, Phillips, Rescate, Tate) 0 noes 71 

72 
Agenda Item #6: President’s Report 73 

74 
a) Meeting Calendar 75 

76 
Dr. Tate provided the update on this item, found on page 17 of the meeting materials. 77 

78 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 79 

80 
No Board comment was offered. 81 

82 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 83 

84 
No public comment was offered. 85 

86 
Agenda Item #7: Executive Officer’s Report 87 

88 



a) Personnel Update 89 
90 

Mr. Burke provided the update on this item, starting on page 37 of the hand-carry 91 
meeting materials. 92 

93 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 94 

95 
No Board comment was offered. 96 

97 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 98 

99 
No public comment was offered. 100 

101 
Agenda Item #8: DCA Update 102 

103 
Dr. Harb Sheets arrived and joined the meeting at 9:21 a.m. 104 

105 
Mr. Burke provided the update on this item, starting on page 38 of the hand-carry 106 
materials. 107 

108 
He commented that DCA sent a note of recognition and thanks to the Board Members 109 
during Public Service Recognition Week. He commented on the proposed 110 
reorganization of the Business Consumer Services and Housing Agency. 111 

112 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 113 

114 
No public comment was offered. 115 

116 
Agenda Item #9: Enforcement Report 117 

118 
Mr. Burke provided the update on this item, starting on page 18 of the meeting 119 
materials. 120 

121 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 122 

123 
No Board comment was offered. 124 

125 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 126 

127 
No public comment was offered. 128 

129 
Agenda Item #10: Budget Report 130 

131 



Mr. Polk provided the update on this item, starting on page 41 of the hand-carry 132 
materials. 133 

134 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 135 

136 
No Board comment was offered. 137 

138 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 139 

140 
No public comment was offered. 141 

142 
Agenda Item #11: Licensing Report 143 

144 
Ms. Cheung provided the update on this item, starting on page 26 of the meeting 145 
materials. 146 

147 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 148 

149 
Dr. Casuga asked how staff would address the anticipated seasonal increase in 150 
applications. 151 

152 
Ms. Cheung commented that staff were being offered overtime if the volume of 153 
applications coming in was too high to effectively redistribute the work among staff. 154 

155 
Mr. Foo asked Ms. Cheung to describe the common deficiencies on the applications in 156 
terms of supporting documents that might cause the processing time to increase. 157 

158 
Ms. Cheung commented that a checklist is provided online to illustrate all the materials 159 
which must be completed before the application packet is sent to the board. She noted 160 
that materials submitted without fees attached are not assigned to the queue. 161 

162 
Mr. Foo asked Ms. Cheung to comment on the expected increase in processing times. 163 

164 
Ms. Cheung provided a current estimate of two to three weeks in waiting time for 165 
applications. She added that this estimate was contingent upon receiving complete 166 
application materials, submitted in a timely manner. 167 

168 
Dr. Tate called for further Board comment. 169 

170 
No further Board comment was offered. 171 

172 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 173 

174 
No public comment was offered. 175 



176 
Agenda Item #12: Examination Report 177 

178 
Ms. Cheung provided the update on this item, starting on page 36 of the meeting 179 
materials. 180 

181 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 182 

183 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that some states only allow an examinee a limited number 184 
of attempts to pass the examination, which might be having an impact on the 185 
comparative number of repeat test-takers between California and other jurisdictions. 186 

187 
Dr. Phillips asked for an explanation as to why California test-takers did worse on 188 
average taking the Examination for the Professional Practice of Psychology (EPPP) 189 
than in other jurisdictions. 190 

191 
Ms. Cheung commented that the previous broad authority regarding educational 192 
requirements could be a contributing factor. 193 

194 
Dr. Casuga commented that there was great variability in testing content between 195 
jurisdictions, partly as a result of the text examiners in different areas giving emphasis to 196 
more localized factors. She added that these and other factors pointed to an issue that 197 
was more nuanced than California simply having test takers of poor quality. 198 

199 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that information shared last year by OPES in its 200 
presentation reflected a diminishing success rate the more times an examinee retook 201 
the EPPP. She added that this statistic could be pulling the pass rate down. 202 

203 
Dr. Phillips asked whether the percentage of test takers that were coming from non-204 
American Psychological Association (APA)-accredited programs was greater in 205 
California than in other states. 206 

207 
Ms. Cheung replied that this was the case according to OPES. 208 

209 
Dr. Phillips commented that graduate programs may not be as selective about the 210 
students they admit to their programs as they used to be, and so the quality of test taker 211 
may be contributing to the falling pass rate. 212 

213 
Mr. Foo commented that the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 214 
(ASPPB) posts a list of passage rates of various doctoral programs relative to each 215 
other. 216 

217 
No further Board comment was offered. 218 

219 



Dr. Tate called for public comment. 220 
221 

No public comment was offered. 222 
223 

Agenda Item #13: Continuing Professional Development (CPD) and Renewals 224 
225 

Mr. Polk provided the update on this item, starting on page 44 of the meeting materials. 226 
227 

Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 228 
229 

Dr. Casuga commented that she was pleased to see attendance at a Board meeting as 230 
a qualifying activity for CPD credit. 231 

232 
No further Board comment offered. 233 

234 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 235 

236 
Ward Ashman asked for clarification on who was considered a ‘peer’ when using Peer 237 
Consultation to satisfy CPD requirements. 238 

239 
Mr. Polk replied that a licensed mental health professional would count as a peer for this 240 
purpose. 241 

242 
No further public comment was offered. 243 

244 
Agenda Item #19: Update and Discussion on the Development of the Integrated 245 
Examination for Professional Practice in Psychology 246 

247 
Dr. Tate introduced Hao Song, PhD, Associate Executive Director of Examination 248 
Service at ASPPB, to provide the update on this item, starting on page 168 of the hand-249 
carry materials. The slideshow she presented was also available as a separate hand-250 
carry item. 251 

252 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 253 

254 
Dr. Casuga asked for an explanation of the process used to appoint the members of the 255 
Job Task Analysis Task Force (JTA). 256 

257 
Dr. Song replied that when calling for volunteers to participate in the JTA, a survey went 258 
out to prospective members to identify the various jurisdictions, practice settings, and 259 
specialties to provide a pool of candidates across a wide range of backgrounds.   260 

261 



Dr. Phillips commented that the validity of a licensing examination is measured 262 
differently than a psychometric assessment instrument and he asked Dr. Song to 263 
address that. 264 

265 
Dr. Song provided an example of licensing someone to drive demonstrates that the 266 
person has the basic skills to drive, but licensure is not a predictor of whether that 267 
person will be a good driver. She commented that it is similar with professional 268 
licensure, where licensure is granted once a certain threshold has been met to enter 269 
practice, but this does not predict whether that licensee might later have disciplinary 270 
action taken against them. She added that the JTA utilized a combination of the 271 
published educational and psychological testing standards of the American 272 
Psychological Association (APA), the American Educational Research Association 273 
(AER), and the National Council on Assessment in Education. 274 

275 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that the Board has given a lot of attention to eliminating 276 
barriers to licensure, and that many states struggle to license enough mental health 277 
professionals. She asked Dr. Song whether states would be able to make their own 278 
decisions as to when a candidate would be eligible to take the EPPP, since the position 279 
of ASPPB supports having the examination applied when the candidate is ready for 280 
licensure. 281 

282 
Dr. Song replied that the JTA would consider whether a candidate should be eligible to 283 
take the examination upon completion of their doctoral program and internship, or as 284 
soon as possible upon completion of coursework. She added that ASPPB factors in 285 
whether examination performance is better if it is taken shortly after the completion of 286 
coursework. She commented that to complete the knowledge-based exam before 287 
starting on the internship would not be recommended, since the integrated exam calls 288 
on both areas of experience. 289 

290 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that the development costs of the new examination would 291 
work their way through the system and put up a new barrier to licensure for some 292 
candidates, especially to those who take it more than once. 293 

294 
Dr. Song responded that JTA would work closely with various stakeholders, including 295 
the Board, especially if the length, and therefore the cost to the test-taker, were to 296 
increase as expected. 297 

298 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that, when reviewing the sample questions, she was 299 
unable to determine the ethnicity of the test taker, which left her unable to assess the 300 
validity of the examination with different ethnic groups. 301 

302 
Dr. Phillips commented that, in his own training, one needed to know the client’s clinical 303 
information to be able to interpret the test results when doing an assessment. He added 304 
that, given the differences in results on a particular scale between different ethnic 305 



groups, there should have been at least a little background on the client to account for 306 
spikes in comparison to other scales. 307 

308 
Mr. Foo asked Dr. Song whether there would be a transitional period in the 309 
implementation timeline to allow the various jurisdictions to update their regulatory 310 
language. He also asked whether there would be overlap between the EPPP Part One 311 
and the new IEPPP, where both would be offered simultaneously. 312 

313 
Dr. Song replied that there would probably be some overlap, since many candidates 314 
would already have signed up and paid their fees to take the EPPP Part One. She 315 
added that the purpose of discussing the roadmap was to allow jurisdictions some time 316 
to start their legislative work in anticipation of the examination going live. 317 

318 
Dr. Phillips commented that the Board had previously gone through all the preparatory 319 
legislative and regulatory work to prepare for implementation, and he emphasized the 320 
importance of allowing sufficient lead time. 321 

322 
Dr. Song replied that she did not anticipate too many legislative changes being 323 
necessary. 324 

325 
Dr. Harb Sheets commented that the Board was already aware of the fee increase 326 
associated with the new examination, but there were still many details that needed to be 327 
worked out with ASPBB, such as when a candidate would be eligible to take the 328 
examination. 329 

330 
Dr. Phillips commented that, given all of the work and time necessary to run through all 331 
the layers of government to approve the Board’s statutory and regulatory business, he 332 
wanted assurance the Board would be given enough lead time to move forward in a 333 
thoughtful way. 334 

335 
Mr. Foo commented that the Board moves very quickly on policy when called for but 336 
emphasized that the Board was not the reason it takes years to get policy changes in 337 
place. He wanted guarantees that there would not be a lot of changes at the legislative 338 
level that would come down, especially while the Board was currently in its Sunset 339 
Review. 340 

341 
Mr. Burke commented that the timeline for 2027 was very short, and that there would 342 
need to be regulatory changes, which at this time could not be considered without 343 
knowing about fees for the new examination. He added that there would need to be 344 
contract discussions with the testing centers. He said that even if some of these 345 
considerations were less difficult to overcome, there was the potential appearance of 346 
raising additional barriers to licensure. 347 

348 



Dr. Harb Sheets asked why the competency-based examination was needed in the first 349 
place. 350 

351 
Dr. Song replied that ASPPB’s decision to implement the new examination arose out of 352 
a consensus that developed over the years since the early 2000’s. She added that 353 
ASPPB could publish more articles to keep the discussion in front of the profession but 354 
said that Boards often have vacancies that are filled by new Members who do not have 355 
the background that other Members brought to the discussion. 356 

357 
Mr. Foo commented that existing statute dictates the timing by which a candidate may 358 
take an examination, and that it was not clear what impact this might have on 359 
implementation. He added that the regulation package the Board previously put 360 
together was developed with a two-part examination in mind, not a single integrated 361 
one. He asked Mr. Burke to clarify whether the exact dollar amount to take the 362 
examination was set out in regulation, because a fee increase for the new examination 363 
would appear to conflict with the regulations. 364 

365 
Mr. Burke commented that the fees associated with taking the examination are not 366 
specifically stated, and that this would not cause a conflict with regulations. He added 367 
that the bigger consideration was that the Legislature would question how the Board 368 
could justify a fee increase. He said that it would be difficult to request legislation that 369 
appeared to raise additional barriers to licensure. 370 

371 
Mr. Foo asked for a grace period to be built into the implementation timeline, during 372 
which time both examinations would be offered simultaneously. He said this would allow 373 
the Board the time it required to make changes through legislation and regulations. 374 

375 
Mr. Foo commented on recent controversy with a different state licensing body which 376 
used AI to generate the questions for its examination. He asked whether AI was used to 377 
generate any of the questions on this new examination. 378 

379 
Dr. Song replied that the examination currently under development relied on human 380 
experts, nor did she anticipate that AI would be used in the short term. She added that, 381 
while AI would certainly be able to generate a large volume of material very quickly, the 382 
quality would possibly be lacking. 383 

384 
Mr. Foo commented that he would want the Board to be kept updated when and if 385 
ASPPB decided to start using AI to generate test questions. He asked the Board 386 
whether they should draft a letter to ASPPB describing their concerns regarding the 387 
implementation timeline, especially if it would be a helpful instrument to capture the 388 
spirit of the discussion that took place at this meeting. 389 

390 
It was (M)Foo(S)Phillips to communicate with ASPPB about the needs of the Board’s 391 
jurisdiction with regard to an implementation timeline of 2027. 392 



393 
Dr. Cervantes requested that the motion be amended to include a request for 394 
justification from ASPPB as to the use of AI. 395 

396 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 397 

398 
Dr. Casuga commented that the letter to ASPPB needed to be clear on the point about 399 
the eligibility requirements to take the examination, and to justify the need for a 400 
competency-based exam. 401 

402 
The motion did not carry, and therefore was not implemented. 403 

404 
Dr. Phillips commented that competency was essential to consumer protection. He 405 
added that the discussion needed to await a clarifying response from ASPPB. He said 406 
that the issues of competency in health care and consumer law have been moving 407 
towards demonstration of competency. He cautioned about the Board being seen as 408 
downplaying the importance of competency, because it is critically important for 409 
consumer protection. 410 

411 
Dr. Casuga commented that this current discussion was about trying to find better ways 412 
to assess competency. 413 

414 
It was (M)Foo(S)Harb Sheets(C) to communicate to ASPPB about the implementation 415 
needs associated with an integrated EPPP and the role of artificial intelligence in test 416 
creation and quality assurance/control and to delegate to the Executive Officer and the 417 
Board President any changes necessary involved in drafting this letter. 418 

419 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 420 

421 
Dr. Winkelman of CPA commented on CPA’s opposition to integration of the two EPPP 422 
examinations into one, stating that it created a substantial and unnecessary burden to 423 
applicants. She added her appreciation that the Board hoped to send a representative 424 
to the ASPPB meeting. 425 

426 
Janet Ferrell from San Diego Psychological Association commented that she would like 427 
to see a proposal to have the Licensure Committee communicate with their counterparts 428 
in other jurisdictions about developing their own alternative examinations to the 429 
integrated examination. 430 

431 
The next public commenter, a licensed clinician, expressed concerns about the use of 432 
AI in generating future test questions. He added that there have been significant issues 433 
created by implementing AI into the examination process, pointing for reference at 434 
difficulties experienced by applicants to the State Bar. He echoed other comments 435 



about raising barriers to licensure, especially to historically-underrepresented 436 
populations. 437 

438 
Votes 439 
8 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Nystrom, Phillips, Rescate, Tate) 0 noes 440 

441 
Agenda Item #18: Discussion and Possible Action of Proposed Changes to 442 
Language and Licensure Application Forms Related to AB 282 443 

444 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 166 of the hand-carry 445 
materials. 446 

447 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 448 

449 
No Board comment was offered. 450 

451 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 452 

453 
No public comment was offered. 454 

455 
Agenda Item #14: Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Committee Update 456 

457 
Dr. Casuga, Chair of this committee, introduced this item, and Mr. Burke provide the 458 
update, starting on page 46 of the hand-carry materials. 459 

460 
a) Legislative Proposals 461 

462 
1) Sunset Review Report 463 

464 
No Board or public comment offered. 465 

466 
b) Review of Bills for Review and Consideration for Action Position Recommendation to 467 
the Board 468 

469 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 149 of the hand-carry 470 
materials. 471 

472 
1) SB 775 (Ashby) Board of Behavioral Sciences 473 

474 
It was (M)Phillips(S)Tate(C) to support SB 775 if amended to incorporate the Board’s 475 
remaining requests that were submitted in the Sunset Report. 476 

477 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 478 

479 



No Board comment was offered. 480 
481 

Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 482 
483 

Dr. Winkelman of CPA voiced strong opposition to the Board’s proposed language 484 
regarding psychotherapist patient privilege for this legislation, adding that including this 485 
language would erode psychotherapist and patient privilege. Regarding proposed 486 
cleanup language for Business and Professions Code (BPC) 2913, she questioned the 487 
current reference to preliminary doctoral exams, which the Board had decided it would 488 
remove.   489 

490 
Mr. Burke commented that the Board did agree to those changes at the April 17, 2025, 491 
Board Meeting, though the changes were not reflected in the meeting materials. 492 

493 
No further public comment was offered. 494 

495 
Votes 496 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Phillips, Rescate, Tate), 1 Recusal 497 
(Nystrom), 0 noes 498 

499 
2) SB 470 (Laird) Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act: teleconferencing 500 

501 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 51 of the meeting 502 
materials. 503 

504 
It was (M)Tate(S)Cervantes(C) to adopt a support position on SB 470. 505 

506 
Dr. Casuga called for Board discussion. 507 

508 
No Board discussion was offered. 509 

510 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 511 

512 
No public comment was offered. 513 

514 
Votes 515 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Phillips, Rescate, Tate), 1 Recusal 516 
(Nystrom), 0 noes 517 

518 
3) SB 641 (Ashby) Department of Consumer Affairs and Department of Real Estate: 519 
states of emergency: waivers and exemptions 520 

521 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 90 of the meeting 522 
materials. 523 



524 
Dr. Casuga asked how many licensees had been affected by the state of emergency 525 
declared under Executive Order N-15-25 resulting from the Los Angeles wildfires. 526 

527 
Mr. Burke commented that to date there had been 13 licensees who had come forward 528 
to avail themselves under the terms of the Order, but others have come forward 529 
requesting to pay on-cycle rather than to defer their renewal. 530 

531 
It was (M)Tate(S)Harb Sheets(C) to adopt a position of support for SB 641. 532 

533 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 534 

535 
No Board comment was offered. 536 

537 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 538 

539 
No public comment was offered. 540 

541 
Votes 542 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Phillips, Rescate, Tate), 1 Recusal 543 
(Nystrom), 0 noes 544 

545 
4) SB 579: (Padilla) Mental health and artificial intelligence working group 546 

547 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 114 of the meeting 548 
materials. 549 

550 
It was (M)Harb Sheets(S)Phillips(C) to adopt a position of support for SB 579. 551 

552 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 553 

554 
No Board comment was offered. 555 

556 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 557 

558 
Tyler Rinde of CPA commented that, as one of SB 579’s co-sponsors, CPA appreciated 559 
the Board’s support of the bill. He added that CPA would be glad to include a 560 
psychologist in the discussion with the bill’s author. 561 

562 
No further public comment was offered. 563 

564 
Votes 565 
7 ayes (Casuga, Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Phillips, Rescate, Tate), 1 Recusal 566 
(Nystrom), 0 noes 567 



568 
c) Bills with Active Positions Taken by the Board 569 

570 
1) AB 489 (Bonta) Health care professions: deceptive terms or letters: artificial 571 
intelligence 572 

573 
Ms. Mancilla provided the update on this item, starting on page 137 of the meeting 574 
materials. 575 

576 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 577 

578 
No public comment was offered. 579 

580 
d) Watch Bills 581 
1) AB 81 (Ta): Veterans: mental health 582 
2) AB 257 (Flora) Specialty care networks: telehealth and other virtual services 583 
3) AB 277 (Alanis) Behavioral health centers, facilities, and programs: background 584 
checks 585 
4) AB 346 (Nguyen) In-home support services: licensed healthcare professional 586 
certification 587 
5) SB 518 (Weber Pierson) Descendants of enslaved persons: reparations 588 
6) AB 742 (Elhawary) Licensing: applicants who are descendants of slaves 589 
7) AB 479 (Tangipa) Criminal procedure: vacatur relief. 590 
8) AB 985 (Ahrens) Anesthesiologists assistants 591 
9) AB 677 (Solache) Professions and vocations: license examinations: interpreters 592 

593 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 594 

595 
No Board comment was offered. 596 

597 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 598 

599 
No public comment was offered. 600 

601 
Agenda Item #15: Legislative Items for Future Meeting 602 

603 
Dr. Casuga introduced this item. 604 

605 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 606 

607 
No Board comment was offered. 608 

609 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 610 

611 



No public comment was offered. 612 
613 

Agenda Item #16: Regulatory Update, Review, and Potential Consideration of 614 
Additional Changes 615 

616 
Dr. Casuga provided the update on this item, starting on page 268 of the meeting 617 
materials. 618 

619 
Dr. Casuga called for Board comment. 620 

621 
No Board comment was offered. 622 

623 
Dr. Casuga called for public comment. 624 

625 
No public comment was offered. 626 

627 
Agenda Item #17: Consideration and Possible Action on ASPPB Norma P. Simon 628 
Regulatory Service Award Nomination 629 

630 
Dr. Phillips introduced this item, starting on page 157 of the hand-carry materials. 631 

632 
It was (M)Phillips(S)Foo(C) to approve a letter by the Board President recognizing the 633 
state, national, and international contributions of Dr. Jacqueline Horn, and to nominate 634 
her for the Norma P. Simon Regulatory Service Award. 635 

636 
Dr. Phillips called for Board comment. 637 

638 
No Board comment was offered. 639 

640 
Dr. Phillips called for public comment. 641 

642 
No public comment was offered. 643 

644 
Votes 645 
7 ayes (Cervantes, Foo, Harb Sheets, Nystrom, Phillips, Rescate, Tate), 1 Recusal 646 
(Casuga), 0 noes 647 

648 
Agenda Item #20: Recommendations for Agenda Items for Future Board Meetings 649 

650 
Dr. Tate called for Board comment. 651 

652 
Dr. Casuga recommended that Dr. Rodgers lead a mindfulness activity. 653 

654 
No further Board comment was offered. 655 



656 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 657 

658 
Dr. Ferrell requested an update on the Board’s communications with the 659 
Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council 660 
regarding that state’s work on developing their own alternative test to the EPPP. 661 

662 
No further public comment was offered. 663 

664 
Special Mention: A Departure 665 

666 
In her closing remarks, Dr. Tate recognized the departure of Dr. Stephen Phillips from 667 
the Board of Psychology.   668 

669 
It was resolved that the Board of Psychology and Department of Consumer Affairs 670 
Director, on behalf of the State of California, acknowledged with deepest gratitude his 671 
wisdom, leadership, excellence, dedication, valuable contributions, and exemplary 672 
service during his long tenure with the Board. 673 

674 
The Board Members and Mr. Burke then each expressed their own well-wishes and 675 
gratitude. 676 

677 
Dr. Tate called for public comment. 678 

679 
Drs. Song and Winkelman expressed how much they would miss him and thanked him 680 
for his years of service. 681 

682 
Dr. Phillips expressed what a privilege it had been to serve the Board. He thanked all in 683 
attendance for their thoughts and kind words. 684 

685 
CPD Credit for Meeting Attendance 686 

687 
Mr. Polk commented that attendance at the meeting today provided 6 hours of CPD 688 
credit under Category 1. 689 

690 
ADJOURNMENT 691 

692 
The meeting adjourned at 1:32 p.m. 693 

694 





Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		20250509_minutes.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 0



		Passed: 30



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top

